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THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022, The annual report serves the purposes
of both a trustees’ report, and a directers’ report under company law.

The trust operates 7 primary academies in the East Midlands.

Its academies have a combined pupil capacity of 2,540 and had a rall of 2,191 in the Autumn 2022 school
census.

STRUCTURE, GOYERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Constitution
The academy trust is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The charitable company's Memcrandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the
academy trust.

The Trustees of The Forge Trust are also the directers of the charitable company for the purposes of company
law.

The charitable company is known as The Forge Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and administrative details on page 1,

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

Trustees' indemnities

In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy trust has purchased insurance to protect trustees,
governars and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions oceourring whilst on frust
business. The insurance provides unlimited cover (Risk Protection Arrangement — OfE).
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THE FORGE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

Methed of recrultment and appointment or election of Trustees

The recruitment, selection and subsequent induction of a new trustee is seen as an opporlunity to improve the
effectiveness of The Forge Trust.

These three elements ensure that we have a balanced, well-informed and effective trustee body. The trust's
guiding principles for new trustees are;

Know their responsibilities for the charity and its resources;
Make themselves familiar with the charity's constitution;
Know when they need to seek specialist advice;

Have clear structures for accountability;

Manage conflicts of interast,

The leadership of the academy trust advertise as necessary when vacancies arise and have a clear view of the
skill set required to add value to the governance already in place. New trustees are elected in line with the
Articles of Association.

Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

Trustees receive ongoing training and developmant. They are kept up to date with the latest published versions
of the Academy Trust Handbook and Governance Handbook, Membership to The Key for School Governors is
provided to all trusiees where they can access on demand training and knowledge bank to support them in their
role,

Curing the year the Chair of Trustees attended a SEND Governors Meeting for the Newark and Tuxford Schoals
with the Family SENCO. The Chair also attended an EMH MAT Networking Event. The information was shared
with all trustees. The Chair and other trustees participated in a virtual Safer Recruitment Refresher Training.
Truslees also completed Cyber Security Training and the Chair completed NCC and NSCP Child Protaction
Training.

Each year a skills audit for trustees is undertaken which provides an opportunity for the trustees and the trust to
highlight any training needs. This helps ensure that their knowledge is always up to date.

Page 4



THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPQRT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT {continued}

Organisational structure

The trust has eslablished a clear crganisational structure with identified lines of accountability and reporting for
all its oparations. This includes defining the responsibilities of the trustees and those responsibilities delegated to
the committees and officers within the trust.

The Board of Trustees comprises 5 members and @ trustees. The Chief Executive Officer [CEQ] reports to the
Board of Trustees and can delegate to the Deputy CEQ, Consultant Principal, Finance Director and academy
Principals as necessary. The Executive Senior Leadership Team [ESLT] comprises the CEO, Deputy CEQO,
Consuitant Principal, Finance Director and Executive Principal.

The board members are responsible for the overall strategic direction of the trust and hoid the CEQ to account
for delivering agreed pricrities, They uphold the constitution and protect the ethos of the trust, having ultimate
respansibility and authority,

The trustees hold each academy to account for its performance through the CED, and provide challenge and
support in their specialist areas.

The Principals have responsibility for the day-to-day operations of their individual academies. However, a trust

led approach is adopied in certain areas such as safeguarding, assessment, recruitment, menitoring and
evaluation.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Pay and remuneration of key management gersonnel is determined by the Full Trust Beoard on the
recommendation of the Finance and Audit Committee, taking inte account a variety of contributory factors such
as role and responsibilities and market factors, Individual pay progression is determined by the Pay Committee
using evidence from academies regarding the results of performance reviews against agreed criteria and
objectives. The pay and remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer is determined by the Board of Trustees.

Trade union facility time
During the year there were no trade union activities carried out by employees of the trust,
Related parties and other connected charities and erganisations

All related party relationships are declared annually and published con the trust website. Transactions with related
parties have been disclosed within the notes t¢ the accounts.
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THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {(CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT {(continued)

Employee involvement and employment of disabled persons

The Truslees recognise that equal opporiunities should be an integral part of good practice within the workplace.
The Trust has established equal oppertunity policies and practices in all areas of its activities, including creating
a working envirenment in which the contribution and needs of all people are fully valued.

The policy of the Trust is to support the recruitment, training, career development and premotion of all future and
existing employees regardless of age, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, race, refigion, belief, disability
or ability.

Ramps and disabled toilets are installed and there is wheelchair access to all main areas of the academies
within the trust where possible. Accessibility plans are maintained at each academy.

Engagement with employees

The Trust has an open culture of performance maonitoring. Teachers are actively involved in reviewing data and
working collaboratively with the leadership team.

Annuzl Academy Advisory Bodies (AAB) are held at each school and senior leaders may attend as staff
representatives. The AAB review the performance of the school during the year (further details are included in
the Governance section).

Where a decision is likely to affect the interests of employaas the Trust would consult with the relevant trade
unions to ensure that the views of their employees are considered in any decisian making.

Engagement with stakeholders

The Trust values the importance of maintaining positive relationships with its stakehaolders that include, but are
not limited to, its pupils, parents, ESFA, local autharity, suppliers and the wider community.

Each school holds regular open forums to allow opportunity for parents and members of the wider community to
angage with the scheol.

Schools have various communication tools for providing information including their website, text, Class Dojo and
emailing services. Parents, pupils and other stakeholders can alse engage direcily with an appropriate member
of staff by visiting the schoaol office.
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THE FORGE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

a. Objects and aims

The vision of the trust is:

Vigion:
Challenging educational orthodoxies so that every chifld makes good progress in core subjects;
all teachers are committed to personal improvement and fulfi their responsibiiities.
alf children receive a broad and balanced curricufum,
all acaderies strive to be outstanding.

Across the trust, we aim to maintain a caring, supportive and disciplined lsaming environment where children
benefit from the best possible education. All staff are committed to this aim.

Ob|ectives, strategies and activities

The main objectives of the trust are to:

*

" & & w»

Concentrate on high quality teaching and getting it right first time;

Ensure low class sizes acress all financially sound academies within the trust;

Focus relentlessly on improving children’s ability in core subjects such as reading, writing and maths;
Recruit and grow our own teachers and leagers from within;

Provide children with the best possible education, ¢lagsrooms and resources,

The strategies for achieving these cbjectives are to:

Ensure staff are fully trained and kept up to date with current issues through CPD, inciuding the completion
of ‘educational research’;

Conduct regular performance appraisals of staff through observation and benchmarking reviews and give
constructive feedback including focused training on areas identified for improvement;

Recruit staff at the right levels and ensure there are enough high quality teachers employed by tha trust to
allow for small class sizes;

Ensure that maths and English are at the top of the teaching agenda and that all teachers and pupils excel in
these areas. Conduct regular performance reviews based on pupil attainment and results in these areas;

As a result of low class sizes, the emphasis on marking and feedback is to be personalises;

Recruit newly qualified teachers where possible and allow them to develop their skills whilst employed by the
trust. Stafi should have the opportunity for promction provided that they can prove their worth and leaders
should be recruited from within where possible;

Ensure that resources are used in the best way possible to achieve the desired educational outcomes for
pupils, challenging them to compete with the top 1% of pupils nationally;

Ensure that teachers have good relationships with parents and carers to allow effective communication and
achisvement of targets.
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THE FORGE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES {continued)

Public benefit

The Trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit putlished by
The Charity Commission [on their website at Charities and Public Benefit] in exercising their powers or duties.

The public benefit of the Trust is enshrined in its charitable objectives, which state that the object of the charity
is: 'to advance for the public henafit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing academies which
offer a breoad and balanced curriculuny’.

STRATEGIC REPORT
Achievements and performance

Both The Marton Academy and The West Park Academy were inspected by Ofsted during the year. Beth
inspection outcomes were positive with The Marton Academy strengthening its overall “Good" rating by achieving
“Qutstanding” for Behaviour and Attitudes and with The West Park Academy receiving a Sced rating having
previously been inadequate prior to joining the Trust.

The Sir Donald Bailey Academy ranked first out of 249 schoals in Nettinghamshire for writing prograss by the
end of K52.

The Sir Donald Bailey Academy ranked fourth out of 249 schools in Nottinghamshire for maths progress by the
end of KS2.

The Sir Donald Bailey Academy ranked twelfth out of 248 schools in Nottinghamshire for reading progress by the
end of K52,

The Python Hill Academy ranked tenth out of 249 schools in Nottinghamshire for writing progress by the end of
KS2.

The Pythen Hill Academy ranked eleventh out of 249 schools in Nettinghamshire for maths progress by the end
of KS2.

The Pythen Hill Academy ranked nineteenth out of 242 schools in Nottinghamshire for reading progress by the
and of KS2.

The Marton Academy achieved outstanding outcomes for pupils with 100% at least achieving age related
expectations.

Tha Marton Academy were successful in securing additicnal funding for the replacement of their rocfing via the
Condition lmprovement Fund (CIF).

The Sir Donald Bailey Academy invested funding to improva the outside learning environment, renovating the
Foundation Stage playground area.

Both The Sir Donald Bailey Academy and The Parkgate Academy resurfaced their grounds enhancing the
outside areas across both sites.

The Parkgate Academy increased capacity for Foundation Stage One children {relocation providing more
space),
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THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)
Achievements and parformance {continued)
The Parkgate Academy invested in wireless access points to improve the connectivity in school.

Additional funding was secured by The Marton Academy and The West Park Acagemy during the year via the
Connect the Classroom scheme which has improved the wireless infrastructure at sach site.

Trim Trails were installed at The Forest View Academy and The West Park Academy and a new play tower at
The Python Hill Academy for the enjoyment by their pupils.

The West Park Academy have committed plans to renovate their Foundation Stage playground in 2022-23.

Funding was invested in technology across the trust to help improve teaching practices and enhance teachers’
professional development,

Key performance indicators

The key performance indicators of the Trust are:

»  Pupil recruitment and retention data

Ofsted Ingpection outcomes;

Exam and key-stage results;

Fupil attendance data;

Staffing costs as a percenlage of income;

Retention of reserves in line with the reserves policy.

Fupil recruitment and retention data
Pupil numbers on roll across the trust has remained relatively consistent with spare capacity at every acaderny,
and using trend analysis, we predict that these numbers will increase next year.

We believe that the main reasons for the increase in pupil numbers at our academies is strong leadership,
communication with parents and the local communities in which we operate, and our improving attainment and
performance results which are published on our websites.

Ofsted Inspection oulcomes
The Marton Academy and The West Park Academy were inspected by Ofsted during the year with both schools
receiving a rating of Good,
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THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES® REPORT (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)

Achiovements and performance {continued}

2022 Trust Attainment Data

Academy %of¥e | % of Y& % of Y& % of Y6 | % combined
puplls who | puplis who |-puplls who | puplls who §-
achieved | achieved | achieved | achleved
ARE In ARE Iny ARE In ARE In
Maths Reading 5PaG Writing
The Sir Donald | 83% 83% 5% 3% 83%
Bailey
Academy
The Parkgate 62% 59% 2% 74% 51%
Academy
The Forest GB%: 7% 65% 77% 65%
View Academy
The Marton 100% 100% 100% 100%: 100%
Academy
The West Park 8405 79% B4% 86% 7905
Acaderny
The Python Hili B0% 80%% B80% 76% 74%
Primary Schoaf
The St 57% 52% 51% 73% 40%
Augustine's
Academy
National 71% 74% 72% 69% 5%9%
Averages at :
National
Standard %
Reading Writing SPaG Maths Combined
The Forge Trust 75% 81.2% 76.7% 7‘_6.3% 70.2%
Averages
Naticnal Averages 74% 69% 72% 71% 59%
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THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee}

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Achievements and performance {continued)

Pupil attendance data

Academy 2021/22 attendanoe
The Sir Donald Baftey 9354
Academy
The Parkgate Academy $0.85%
The Forest View Academy 95.1%
The Marton Acaderny 94,6%
The West Park Academy 93.76%
The Python Hill Primary 94.6%
Schoal
The St Augusting’s 92.06%
Academy

Staffing costs as a parcentage of income
The Forge Trust uses a benchmark of 75% of staffing casts as a percentags of income in line with its objective
of low class sizes. The actual percentage for the year to 31st August 2022 was 72%.

Retention of reserves in line with the reserves policy
See financial review and reserves policy for details of current reserves and expectations.

Promoting the success of the company

In arder ta achieve the Trust's Vision as detailed under Objectives and Aims, careful consideration of all strategic
decisicns is made io ensure that they are for the benefit of improving educational cutcomes for all pupils. The
trust sfrives for high educational standards and works collaboratively with its employees to achieve this,

Schools regularly update parents and the community with activities and successes achieved in school thus
providing accountability to the communities we serve,

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust
has adequate rescurces to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoplion of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies,
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THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)}

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Most of the trust’s income is obtained from the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is
restricted to particular purposes, The grants received from the ESFA during the year ended 31 August 2022 and
the asscciated expenditure is shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

During the year the trust received funding of £13,607,328 (axcluding fixed asset and pansion transfers on
conversion and funding within the restricted fixed asset fund) compared to resources expended (excliuding
depreciation within the restncted fixed asset fund and pension reserve expenditure) of £12,321,232 and transfers
out to the restricted fixed asset fund of £797,292 to give an in year surplus on revenue funding for the year of
£488,804,

The total accumulated reserves of the Trust as at 31 August 2022 were £33,953,380,

The amount that can only be realised by disposing of tangible fixed asset is £33,155,783.
Reseirves policy

The Trust will build and maintain a revenue reserve fund equal to two month's expenditure to provide flexibility
and certainty in forward planning where funds allow. The amount of reserves required shaft be reviewed and
datermined annually as part of the budget setting pracess and in line with the trust improvement plan.

The Trust's ‘free reserves’ are its funds available after excluding restricted funds. ‘Reserves’ are therefore the
resources the trust can make available to spend on any or all of the Trust's purposes cnce it has met its
commitments and coverad its other planned expenditure,

More specifically ‘free reserves’ represents funds which ¢an be spent at the Trustees’ discretion in furtherance of
any of the Trust's objectives which are not yet spent, committed cr designated.

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Trust annually. This review encompasses the nature of income
and expenditure streams. The Trustees have determined an appropriate level of reserves should be equivalent
o 2 months' total revenue expenditure which equates to £2,025,672,

The reason for this is to provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between the spending and receipt of
grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance. The Trust's
current level of reserves are above the target at £2,850,982.

The level of restricted funds at the ysar end, excluding the Restricted Fixed Asset fund; Endowment Fund and
Pension Reserve, amounted to £2,586,221.

The level of unrestricted funds at the year-end amounted to £264,761.
Funds in deficit

The Trust's non-teaching siaff are entitled io membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme, The
Trust's share of the Scheme's assets is currently assessed to be less than its liabilities and consequently the
balance sheet shows a net liability of £2,130,000, However, the deficit does not mean that an immediate liability
for this amount crystallises. The contribution rate to reduce the lability is calculated by an independent actuary
and is reporied within the notes to the financial statements.
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THE FORGE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee}

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Investment policy

If significant cash balances can be foreseen, it is Trust policy to review current investment products for their
suitability to see if a better return can be made. However, consideration should only be given to risk-free and
immediately accessible deposit accounts. Interest rates must be reviewed annually and compared with other
products available, The Trustees must approve all accounts and investments,

The Trustees will have due regard to ethical and environmental issues when selecling investments and will
maintain a dialogue with the companies in which they invest with regard t¢ such matters. They will not make
investments in tabacco or arms companies.

All investments must be recorded in sufficient detail to identify the investment and enable current market value to
be calculated. The information required will normaily be the date of purchase, the cost and a description of the
investment, Additional procedures may be required to ensure that any income due from the investment is
received.
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THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantae}

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trust has an up to date risk register which detzils the main risks facing the Trust and the related controls in
place to mitigate those risks where possible. Intemal control systems and exposure o risks are considered on a
regular basis by trustees and management,

Outlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the Trust and the strategies in plage to
manage those risks. It should be noted howevar that not all risks are within the Trust's control and other factors
besides those listed may also have the potential to adversely affect the Trust.

1.Government funding

The Trust places considerable reliance on centinued government funding through the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (ESFA) and the Local Authority. This is considered to be a principal risk to the Trust as without
this funding the Trust would not be able to conlinue as a going concern. The strategies in place to manage this
risk are as follows:

¢ The funding is derived through a number of direct and indirect contractual arrangements;

« Considerable focus and investment is placed on maintaining and managing key relaticnships with the
funding bodies;

» Emphasis is placed on priority sectors which will continue to benefit from government funding;

» (Contingency planning is embedded in the budgeting process.

2.Pension liabilities

The Trust needs to ensure that it can adequately fund its pension liabilities as any shortfall could have a serious
impact on long-term financial stability. In order to manage this risk, the Trustees receive regular advice from the
Trust's pension actuary including updates of the position of the pension deficit which allows them to make
appropriate contributions to ensure that the deficit does not become unmanageable.

3.Increasing cost pressures

Significant increases to energy costs, cost of food and other general expenditure along with the unexpected
increase in sltaffing costs that have not been matched with additional funding could result in budgets becoming
increasingly under pressure if additional funding is not provided.

The risk of rising costs pressures are mitigated as follows:

+ The Trust's reserves policy provides a level of protection against unexpected costs,

» KPls are regularly monitored and action taken where the Trust is not within the parameters set to ensure the
Trust's budget remains sustainable.

4.Pupil strategy

The risk of falling pupil numbers across the Trust is mitigated by:

» Ensuring the Trust delivers high quality education;

+ Maintaining high success rates and goad inspection cutcomes;
« [nvesting in teaching staff and educational resources;-

» Maintaining good relationships with parents and the community.

Focusing on these areas places the Trust in a strong position to continue to grow.,

The Trustees consider that the Trust's exposure to financial risks including credit, cash flow ang liguidity risks is
low. !
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THE FORGE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Fundraising

The Academy Trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the year was

monitared by the Trustees,

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

we have foflawed the 2019 HM Government Environmental
Reporting Guidelines, We have sso used the GHG Reporting
Protocel — Corparate standard and have used the 2022 UK
Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reparting.

Intensity measurement

The ditosen Intensity measurement ratio is tatzl gross
emissions In metric tonnes C02e per pupil, the
recommended retic for the sector,

Megsurements taken to imorove epergy effidency

Energy consumption was higher in 2021-22 due to the
additien of a new school joining the trust, However, the
averall Tonnes of Q02¢ per pupl had dacressad, In 2021-22
schoals were cpen for the whole period compared o the
previous year which had partial dosures due te the
pandemic. [nvestments in LED fighting have been mada in
schaols be mprove energy effiGency. Video conferencing
technology for staff mestings continge to be used to reduce
L need for troved between sites.

UK Greenhouse gas emissiens and enengy data for Preyigus year
the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 2021-22 2020 - 21
Energy consumption used bo calculate amisstons {kwh) 2,519,730 2,280,987
Energy consumption break down {kWWh)
* Gas 1,727,756 1,677,125
+  Hectricity 191,583 603,862
Scope 1 emissipng in metric Lonnes CO2e
Gas contumption 31L0D 307.18
Scops 2 emisgions tn metric tonnes COZe
Purchased dectricity 153,15 128,22
Scope 3 emisslogs 1 matnc tonnes COD¢
Business trovel in emplovee owned vahides B -
Totxl gross emissions in metric tonpes O02e 454,15 435.40
Intensity [atlo
Tonnes CO2e per pupll 0.2 0.25
Cuantification and Reporting Mathodology
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THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limited by guaranteas)

TRUSTEES' REFORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGLIST 2022

Plans for future periods

The following aims and key objectives are as set out in the Strategic Growth Plan 2022.23:

» To ensure each sponsored academy secures at least "Good" under the Cfsted framewaork;

+ To ensure that the position of existing “Good" Schools within the Trust is secured and strengthened towards
"outstanding”;

« To continue to focus on recruitment and training of staff to ensure that the delivery and standard of teaching
and learning remains high;

« To snsure that the Trust average for attainment by the end of key stages 1 and 2 for pupils attending
academies within the Trust is greater than the national average;

* To ensure that academies within the Trust show a greater than national average improvement in Cfsted
judgements, resulting in consistently ‘good' or ‘outstanding’ academies across the Trust;

* As a result of effective leadership development, to ensure that academies within the Trust show Cfsted
judgemaents for leadership and management that are consistently ‘good’ or ‘outstanding'.

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others
The Trust holds no funds as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others.
Disclosure of information to auditors

Ingofar as the Trustees arg aware;

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
. that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Trustees' Report, ingluding a Strategic Report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
Company Directors, on 12 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs S Trantini

Chair of Trustees
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THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limitad by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

As Truslees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Forge Trust has an effective
and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of faifure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DFE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance,

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Exsecutive, as Accounting Officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
The Forge Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of
Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal contral,
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THE FORGE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the
Statement of trustees' responsibilities, The board of Trustees has formally met 3 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Trustees was as fallows:

Trustee Meaetings altended Out of a possible
Mrs Astill 3 3
Mr Hessey, Chief Executive and Accounting 3 3
Officer

Ms Murray 2 3
Mrs Sargisson 3 3
Mr Scawthon 1 3
Mrs Trentini, Chair of Trustees 3 3
Mr Woodman-Clarke 0 3
Mr Barker 0 0
Mrs Bird 0 0
Mr Johnson 0 0

P Towner, H Berry and T Puttergill attend mesetings as observers and da not have any voting rights.

The Board of Trustees meets at least three times per annum, usually termly. Their specific responsibilities
include:

» Priorty setfing and ratification of new projects;

» Holding the CEOQ to account for delivery of strategic objectives and the averall performance of the trust;

¢ Appointment, appraisal, discipline and dismissal of the ESLT;

« Appointment of external auditors;

» Appointment and removal of Board members including positions within the Board and on committees;
Maintaining and publishing a register of members which includes details of any business interests and
possible conflicts of interest;

Approval of the annual budget, medium term financial plans, business plans and risk management policy;
Approval of the Trust's annual report and statutory financial statements;

Appraisal of the affairs of the Trust and its academies;

Ensuring agreed policies are being implemenied by the Trust;

Ensuring the Trust's compliance with charity and company law, its Memorandum and Articles of Association
and all other applicable legislation including DfE and ESFA requirements;

* Ensuring proper and reguiar use of public funds and compliance with the Funding Agreement;

» Ensuring any recommendations for improvement by external bodies are carried out.

A full review of the impact and effectiveness of the Board of Trustees was carried out during the year. As a result
3 new trustees were appointed with different skills sets to strengthen the structure and composition of the board
and its sub-commiitees to focus on the core strengths and expertise of each trustee and allow more meaningful
debate, challenge and review, The Scheme of Delegation Policy provides an in-depth analysis of the roles and
rasponsibilities of the Board of Trustees, its sub-committess and the executive senior leadership team. Academy
Advisory Bodies are set up at local level to allew academy Principals to have mare control and autenomy over
the day-to-day operations of individual academies.

Although the Board has formally met less than six times during the year, it is satisfied that it has been able to
maintain effeclive oversight of funds by implementing that the Finance and Audit Committee meet at least six
times during the year.
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THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {CONTINUED}

Governance (continued)
Conflict of interest

The Trustees are responsible far ensuring that, in its conduct and operation, the Trust applies financial and other
controls which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. The Trust
has laken all necessary steps to ensure that any conflicts of interest are recorded within the register of interests
and appropriately disclosed within financial statements. Transactions are completed at arms length and the
related party has no involvement in decisions in which they have an interest. The Trust financial procedures
include consideration of related party transactions, to ensure that staff are alert to the possibility of conflicts of
interest and their impact.

The Finance and Audit Committee feed back to the main Board and can request that an additional Board
meeting is held if censidered necessary. Detailed monthly management aceounts are produced and shared with
the Chair of Trustees every month and at each Finance and Audit Committee meeting.

The Finange and Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to assist the
decision making of the Board of Trustees by enabling more detailed consideration of the Trust’s planning, control
and monitoring of finances and resources. This includes making recommendations to the Trustees in relation to
annual budgets, medium term financial plans, financial policies, risk management, spending and performance.

The Finance and Audit Committee also enswres that the Trust complies with all matters of regularity, propriety
and value for money in its use of public funds and ensures compliance with financial regulations, including The
Academy Trust Handbook.

Attendance during the year at mastings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible
Mr Woodman-Clarke (chair) 0 6
Mrs Trentini & &
Mr Puttergill 6 6
Mr S¢awthon 3 6
Mrs Astill <] &

Mr Puttergill attends meetings as an observer and does not have any voting rights.

The Strategic Management Committee is alsc a sub-commitiee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to
provide assurance to the board of trustees in relation to education outcomes, Its responsibilities include: -

+ Monitoring the performance of individual academies against agreed KPI's;

+ Assessing the quality of leadership in each academy in terms of academic performance, quality of teaching,
exclusions and pupil / staff attendance;

Reviewing development plans and progress made against targets;

Reviewing any Ofsted or DfE Inspection reports and implementing recommended practice;

Ensuring the effective use of SEND, Pupil Premium and PE/Sport Premium funding;

Monitoring pupil progress and assessing the impact of any changes to national curriculum on the Trust and
its academies,

The Strategic Management Commitiee also considers the employee related aspacts of the Trust which include
receiving proposals regarding policies on performance and pay, monitoring and evaluating the parformance of
the CEQ and advising on the strategic planning of human resources,

Aftendance at mestings in the yvear was as follows:
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THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {CONTINUED}

Governance {continued)

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible
Ms Murray {Chair} 2 3
Mr Puttergill 3 3
Mrs Trentini 3 3
Mrs Sargisson 1 3

Academy Advisory Bodies

Each academy within the Trust has an Academy Advisory Body {(AAB) which comprises of key leaders of the
Trust and academy level personnel. The remit and terms of reference of these bodies are established by the
Board of Trustees. The AAB's meet annually. Attendees may include the Academy Principal, Vice Principal, a
parent representative, the Trust's SENCO, CEQ, Deputy CEO and a community member.

The main purpose of the AAB is to exercise challenge and support on behalf of the Trust to aid performance at
academy level, and to advise the leadership of each academy on matters cencarning the local community in
order for the academy to stay in touch with its key stakeholders.

Academy Open Forums
The Trust gauges parent opinions in tarmly open forums.
ESLT Meetings

Menthly meetings are held for the Executive Senior Leadership Team to discuss improvement at academy level,
with agendas focusing on the Ofsted evaluation schedule.

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the academy Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
sducaticnal and wider socigtal outcormes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided geed value for money during
each academic vear, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data where appropriate., The Accounting Officer for the academy trust has delivered
improved vaiue for money during the year by.

s Sharing resources (including employees) across the Trust;

» Regularly reviewing significant costs to confirm that the Trust is geiting the best value for money;
*  Using the right expertise in the right places;

« Obtaining quotes and tenders in line with the Trust Procurement Policy;

Obtaining Board approval for significant cast items in line with the Trust Procurement Policy;
Setting modest and sustainable leadership pay structures;

» Restructuring and streamlining where appropriate.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The purpose of the system of internal control

The systam of internal control is designed to manage risk to 2 reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absoluie
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal conirgl is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, ta evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and fo manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Forge Trust for the period 1
September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and financial
statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigale those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evalualing and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and
up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Financiat Statements. This process is regularly reviewed by
the Board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework
The Academy Trust's system of internal financial coniral is based on a framewocrk of regular management

information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

» comprehensive budgeting and monitering systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees
. regular reviews by the Finance and Audit Committea of reports which indicale financial performance

against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
setting targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has decided to buy-in an internal audit service from Forrester Boyd to carry out an agreed
annual programme of internal assurance works. This option has been chosen because the Trustees feel it
provides the most rigour.

The Internal Auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy Trust's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

« lesting of income systems;

» testing of credit card expenditure;

« {esting of control account/ bank reconciliations.

On an at least annual basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees on the operation of the systems of
control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities, During the year to 31 August
2022 no material control issues were identified by the reviewer as a result of the work carried out.

The revised FRC ethical standards for auditors prehibits the external auditor of an entity to carry out internal
audit services. The Trust appointed Duncan & Toplis Limited as their external auditor.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {CONTINUED)

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal contrel. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the reviewer;

the work of the external auditor;

the work of the financial management and governance reviewer,

the school resource management self-assessment tool;

the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framewaork.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance and Audit Cormmittee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 12 December 2022 and signed on their behalf
by:

Mrs 8 Trentini Mr L Hesssgy
Chair of Trusteas : Mg Officer
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Cfficer of The Forge Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust Board
of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy Trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
cansideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding
under the Acaderny Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2021.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compfiance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA,

Mr L Hessey
Accountin
Date: 12 December 2022
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THE FORGE TRUST
{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

The Trustees {who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Truslees' repori and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and 3kills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees lo prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming rasourcas and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. chserve the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2021 o 2022,

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reascnable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material deparures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements compiy with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charilable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management, They are also responsible for ensuring granis received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from [egislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Scard of Trustees on 12 December 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs S Trentini
Chair of Trustees

T R A SRR R T L TR iy, SN S PPN
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THE FORGE TRUST
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
FORGE TRUST

Opinlon

We have audited the financial statements of The Forge Trust (the 'academy trust') for the year ¢nded 31 August
2022 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and
the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland’, the Charities SCRP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2021 to 2022 jssued by the Educaticn and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinicn the financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) {ISAs {UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of cur repert. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporting Counci's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

in auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial staterments is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's abilily to continue as
a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authoriged for
issue,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report,

Page 25



THE FORGE TRUST
(A company limited by quarantee}

INDEPENDENT AULRITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
FORGE TRUST {CONTINUED)

Cther information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditors’ report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we de not express any form of assurance conclusion therecn, QOur
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears 1o be materizlly misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a matenal misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have ncthing to report in this regard.
Opinlon on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustess' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment cbtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' repart including the Strategic report.

We have nothing to repeort in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requiraes us to report to you if, in Qur opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
FORGE TRUST {CONTINUED})

Responsibilities of trusiees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' respensibilities, the Trustees {who are also the directors of
the academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal conirel as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal
misstatemnent, whether due 10 fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
voncern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in -
accordance with 1SAs {UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered maledal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, oullined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which cur procedures are capable of defecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:

We have identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected {o have a material effect on
the financial statements from our general commercial experience, knowledge of the ssctor, a review of
regulatory and legal carrespondence and through discussions with Trustees and other management obtained as
part of the work required by auditing standards. We have also discussed with the Directors and other
managemeni the policies and procedures relating to compliance with laws and regulations. We communicated
laws and regulations throughout the team and remained alert to any indications of non-cempliance throughout
the audit.

The potential impact of different laws and regulations varies considerably. Firstly, the Academy is subject to laws
and regulations that directly impact the financial statements (for exarmple financial reporting legislation) and we
have assessed the extent of compliance with such laws as part of our financial staternents audit. We evaluated
management incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements, (including risk
of averride of controls) and determined that the principal risks were related to management bias in accounting
estimate and judgemental areas of the financial statements such as depreciation of tangible fixed asset, as well
as the risk of inappropriate journal entries to increase reporied profitability. Audit precedures performed by the
engagement team included the identification and testing of material and unusual journal entries and challenging
management on key accounling estimates, assumptions and judgements made in preparation of the financial
statements. We carried out detailed substantive tests on accounting estimates, including reviewing the methods
used by management to make those estimates, re-performing the calculation, and reviewing the outcome of
prior year estimates.

Secondly, the Academy is subject to other laws and regulations where the consequence for non-compliance
could have a material effect on the amounts or disclosures in the financial statements. We idenlified Ofsted
regulations, Health and Safety regulations, compliance with the Funding agreement and compliance with the
Academy Trust Handbook as most likely to have such an effect.
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INDEFENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TC THE MEMBERS OF THE
FORGE TRUST {CONTINUED)

Auditing standards limit the required audit precedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the Trustees and other management and inspection. We have performed audit work through
enquiries with management regarding any non-comgliance and reviewed all available information to assess
whether any breaches have been found. Through these procedures, if we became aware of any non-compliance,
we considered the impact on the procedures performed on the related financial statement items.

Owing to the inherent limitaticns of an audit, there is an unaveidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed cur
audit in accordance with auditing standards. The further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is
from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it. As with any audit, there is a grealer risk of non-
detection of irregularities as these may involve collusion, intentional omissions of the override of internal controls,
We are not respansible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all
laws and regulations.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.ulk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description farms part of our
Auditors’ report.

Use of our report

This report is made sclely to the academy trust's members, as a body, 'n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state fo the academy trust's
members those malters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose, To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assurne responsibility to anyene other than the academy trust
and its members, as a bady, for cur audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

TSlacrs gpls U

Timothy Godson FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and cn behalf of

Dunecan & Toplis Limited

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

4 Henley Way

Lincoln

Lincolnshire

LN8 30R

12 December 2022

Page 28



THE FORGE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT CON REGULARITY TO THE FORGE
TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 2 November 2022 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency {(ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022, we have carried out an engagement to cbtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by The Forge Trust during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been
applied to the purpases identified by Pardiament and the financial transactions conform te the authorities which
govern them.

This report is made sclely to The Forge Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter.
Qur work has been undertaken so that we might state fo The Forge Trust and ESFA those matters we are
required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than The Forge Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the
conclusion we have fermed.,

Respective responsibilities of The Forge Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Forge Trust's funding agreemeant with the
Secretary of State for Education dated December 2014 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial fransactions conform to the autharities which govern them.

Qur responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, We report to you whether anything has come
to our attenfion in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament er that the financial transactions do not conferm to the authorities which govern them,

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporiing Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
reguiarity,

A limiled assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
censequently does not enabie us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion,

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence retevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE FORGE
TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has net been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform {0 the authorities which

govern them.
= T@L\j (/(a,

Timothy Godson FCA

Reporting Accountant

Duncan & Toplis Limited

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

4 Henley Way
Lincoln
Lincolnshire
LNG 3QR

Date: 12 December 2022
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Restrictad
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2022 2021
Note £ £ £ £ £
Income from:
Donations and capital
grants 3 - 56,718 471,371 528,009 49 714
Other trading activities 5 101,891 70,671 - 172,562 89,716
Investments 3] 22 - - 322 226
Charitable activities:
Funding for the
academy trust's
educational operations 4 - 13,117,547 - 13,117,547 10,266,529
Transfer on conversion
from local authority into
the academy trust 33 - (2,147,821) 6,809,006 4,661,185 -
Total income 102,213 11,097,115 7.2802377 18,479,705 10,406,185
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 82,876 41,811 - 124,687 73,851
Charitable activities;
Academy trust's
educatiopal cperations 4 3,265 13,362,280 703,645 14,069,190 10,357,867
Total expenditure 86,141 13,404,091 703,645 14,193,877 10,431,718
Net
income/f{expenditure) 16,072 (2,306,976} 6,576,732 4,285,828 (25,533)
Transfers between
funds 20 - (797,292} 797,292 - -
Net movement in
funds before other
recognised
gains/{losses) 16,072 (3,104,268) 7.374,024 4,285,828 (25,533}
Other recognised
gainsi/{losses):
Actuarial gains/(losses)
on defined benefit
pension schemes 29 - 9,008,000 - 9,008,000 (822,000
Net movement in
funds 16,072 5,903,732 13,293,828 (847,533)

7,374,024

Reconciliation of
funds:
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE AGCOUNT)

(CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDELD 31 AUGUST 2022

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2022 2021
Note £ £ £ £ £
Total funds brought
forward 248,689 {5,447 ,511) 25,858,874 20,660,052 21,507,585
Net movement in funds 16,072 5,903,732 7,374,024 13,293,828 {847.533)
Total funds carried
forward 264,761 456,221 33,232,698 33,953,880 20,660,052
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Fixed assets

Tangible assets
Current assets

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities

Creditors; amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets

Total agsets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust
Restricted funds:

Restricted fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension liability

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Note

16

17

18

19

29

20
20

20
20

20
20

2022
£
33,155,783
727,215
3,457,579
4,184,794
{1,247,649)
2,937,145
36,092,928
(9,048)
36,083,880
{2,130,000)
33,953,880
33,232,898
2,586,221
35,819,119
(2,130,000}
33,689,119
264,761

33,953,880

2021
£
25,875,031
342,521
2,593,859
2,936,380
(575,613)
2,360,767
28,235,798
(14,746}
26,221,052
(7,561,000)
20,660,052
25,858,874
2,113,489
27,972,363
(7,561,000)
20,411,363
248,689

20,860,002
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BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2022

The financial statements on pages 31 toc 72 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are

signed on their behalf, by:

Mrs S Trentini Qﬁw/ ,

Chair of Trustees
Date: 12 December 2022
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THE FORGE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Cash flows from operating activitias

Net cash proviged by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note

22
24

23

25,26

2022 2021

£ £
8,370,067 942,230

(7,499,695} {283,214)

(6,652) (6.668)
863,720 652,348
2,593,859 1,941,511

3,457,579

2,593,859
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THE FORGE TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1.

Aceounting policies

1.1

1.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and Xey sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public banefit entity under FRS 102, have
bean prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Repoiting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reperting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Praclice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard appiicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP [FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 20271 to 2022 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006,

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the academy trust to continue as a going concern, The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ablility to
conlinue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going cencern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.
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Accounting policies {continued}

1.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured refiably,

+ Legacies

The recognition of income from legacies is dependent on establishing entittement, the probability of
receipt and the ability to estimate with sufficient accuracy the amount receivable. Evidence of
entitlement to a legacy exists when the academy trust has sufficient evidence that a gift has been left
tc them (through knowledge of the existence of a valid will and the death of the benefactor) and the
executer is satisfied that the property in question will net be required to satisfy claims in the estate.
Receipt of a legacy must be recognised when it is probable that it will be received and the fair value
of the amount receivable, which will generally be the expected cash amount to be distributed to the
academy trust, can be reliably measured.

s« Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the peried is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
refated conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognitien is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted frem income and recognised as
a liakility.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement 10 the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entilement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

+ Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts te a denation is recognised in the
Statement of financial activities in the year in which it is receivable {where there are no performance-
related conditions} where receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

« Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

s Other income

Cther income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the academy trust has provided the goods or services.

« Transfer on convarsion

Where assets and liabilities are received by the academy trust on conversion to an academy, the
transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the Balance sheet at the point when
the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of income is
recognised as a fransfer on conversion within 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants’ to the net

Page 37



THE FORGE TRUST
(A company Hmited by guarantee}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

1.

Accounting policies {continued)

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Income {continued)
assets received.
Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
ta a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the abligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support cosls which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources, Ceniral staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use,

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount ¢an be measured
reliably by the academy trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
PUrpOSes.

Accardingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxafion in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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1.

Accounting policies {continued}

1.7

1.8

1.9

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed asseis and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairmeant.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet al cost and depreciated
over their expecied useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation an
the relevant assels is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
cohstruction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Long-term leasehold properly - 2% straight line

Furniture and equipment - 25% straight line
Computer equipment - 25% straight line
Motor vehicles - 25% straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if evenis or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shorifalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
aof three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.10 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an cbligation at the Balance sheet date as a resull of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities ara recognised at the amount that the academy
trust anticipates it will pay to seitle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.
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1.

Accounting policies {continued)

1.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a resull
of a past event which it 's probatie will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation
can be estimated reliably,

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.12 Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instrurnents as defined in FRS 102, The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other deblors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - rade creditors, accrials and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured al amorlised cost as detailed in notes 18 and 19. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Ceferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash seltlement has already taken place and there is an cbligation to deliver
services rather than cash or anather financial instrument.

1.13 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statament of financial activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term.
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Accounting policles {contlnued)

1.14 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ("TPS™) and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and confributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working fives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cast is
a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pensicn scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuanal basis using the projected unit ¢redit methed and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high guality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurmed. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Stalement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defingd benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

The academy trust is a member of a multi-employer plan. Where it is not possible for the academy
trust to obtain sufficient information to enable it to account for the plan as a defined benefit plan, it
accounts for the plan as a defined contribution plan.

1.15 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied fo specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/danor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund,
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Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiance and other
factors, including expectations of future ewvents that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing 2 material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate, Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 29, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2022. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact an the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Income from donations and capital grants

Restricted
Unrestriciad Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds furds
2022 2022 2022 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £
Donations - 56,718 - 56,718 6,718
Capital Grants - - 471,371 471,3T1 42,996
Total 2022 - 56,718 471,371 528,089 49,714
Total 2021 1,812 4,806 42,995 49,714

Page 42



THE FORGE TRUST

{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2022 2022 2021
£ £ £
Academy trust’'s educational operations
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant {(GAG) 9,690,371 9,690,371 7,472,040
Other DIE/ESFA grants
Start Up Grant 25,000 25,000 -
Pupil Premium 1,142,632 1,142,632 839,232
Other DIE/ESFA Revenue grants 479,062 479,062 295,553
Teachers pay and pension grants 42,182 42,182 345,053
- 11,379,247 8,651,678
Other government grants
SEN 1-1 Funding 272204 272,204 213,100
Other government revenue grants 176,647 176,647 125,687
Early years funding 700,232 700,232 473,726
1,149,083 1,149,083 812,515
Other income from the academy trust's funding for the
academy trust's educational operations 374,805 374,805 215,868
COVID-19 additional funding (DFE/IESFA)
Catch-up Premium - - 126,081
Free school meal vouchers - - 158,053
Emergency funding - - 2,136
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding 214,412 214,412 -
214,412 214,412 286,270
13,117,547 13,117,547 10,266,529
13,117,547 13,117,547 10,266,529
Total 2021

10,266,529

10,266,529

During the year the academy received ENil (2021: £126,081} of Coronavirus Catch-Up Premium and costs
incurred in respect of this funding totalled £Nil (2021: £126,081), meaning there is ENil to be spent in
2022123,

During the year the academy received £Nil (2021: £2,136) of Coronavirus Emergency Funding and costs
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4,

Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operatlons {continued)

incurred in respect of this funding totalled £Nil {2021: £2,136}, meaning there is ENil to be spent in

2022{23.

During the year the academy received £214,412 (2021: ENil} of Coronavirus Recovery Premium and
National Tutoring Programme funding and costs incurred in respect of this funding totalled £214,412

(2021: ENil}, meaning there is £Nil to be spent in 2022/23.

Income from other trading activities

Unrestricted  Rastricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

2022 2022 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

Letting income 14,511 - 14,511 9,334

Sale of goods - 19,561 19,561 22,834

Catering Income 64,086 - 64,086 21,717

Other income 23,294 54,116 74,404 35,831

Tota) 2022 101,891 70,671 172,562 89716
50,889 89,716

Tolal 2021 38,727
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Investmeant income

Bank interest received

Teiat 2021

Expenditure

Expenditure on raising
voluntary income:

Direct costs

Expenditure on fundraising
trading activities:

Direct costs
Activitias:

Direct costs

Support costs

Total 2022

Total 2021

Unrestricted Totzl Total
funds funds funds
2022 2022 2021
£ £ £
322 322 226
226 226
Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2022 2022 2022 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ E
- - 1,504 1,504 4,660
46,776 - 76,407 123,183 69,191
8,814,043 587,766 954,228 10,356,937 7.61D0.824
2,167,870 813,560 730,723 3,712,253 2,737,843
11,029,680 1,401,328 1,762,862 14,193,877 10,431,718
8,058,494 1,124,274 1,247,850 10,451,718
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Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities

Summary by fund type

tducational operations

Total 2021

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Educational cperations

Tolal 2021

Unrestricted  Restricted
funds funds Total Total
2022 2022 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
3,265 14,065,925 14,069,190 10,357,867

- 10,357,867 10,357,867
Activities

undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
10,356,937 3,712,253 14,069,190 10,357,867

2,737,843

7,618,924

10,357,867
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysls of direct costs

Educational Total Total

operations funds funds

2022 2022 2021

£ £ £

Staff costs 8,814,943 8,814,943 6,603,488
Depreciation 703,645 703,645 555,436
Educational supplies 565,067 555,057 301,813
Technelogy costs 30,551 20,551 18,381
Staff development 79,785 79,785 48,077
Other costs 172,956 172,956 92729
Total 2022 10,356,937 10,356,937 7,619,924

Total 2021 7,619,824

7,618,924
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Staff costs

Technology costs

Recruitment and support
Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

Rent and rates

Energy costs

Insurance

Security

Transport

Telephone, postage and stationery
Catering

Other costs

Bank interest and charges
Auditors’ remuneration

Legal costs - conversion
Professional fees

Total 2022

Total 2021

During the year ended 31 August 2022, the Academy incurred the following Governance costs:

Educational Total Total
operations funds funds
2022 2022 2021
£ £ £
2,167,970 2,167,970 1,445,471
151,886 151,886 109,060
3,383 3,383 1,800
173,063 173,063 113,084
329,236 329,236 292 528
82,302 82,302 55,762
183,283 183,283 136,388
53,020 53,020 35,461
44,410 44,910 21,687
2,838 2,838 542
21,917 21,917 17,121
206,543 206,543 283,685
184,243 184,243 113,370
896 896 598
26,935 26,935 23,500
9,588 8,568 -
70,260 70,260 77,836
3,712,253 3,712,253 2,737,943
2,737,943

2,737,943

£65,431 {2021 - £66,748) included within the table above in respect of Funding for the Academy's

educational cperations.
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10.

1.

12

Analysis of specific axpenses

Included within expenditure are the following transactions:

Individual items above £5,000

Total Amount Reason
3 £
Unrecoverable debts 2,252 -

Net income/{expendlture)}

Net income/{expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Cepreciation of tangible fixed assets
Internal audit services

Fees paid to auditors for:

- audit
- gther services

Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wagas and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staif costs

2022 2021

£ £

30,736 30,501
695,092 555,436
4,000 4,000
20,380 17,750
2,585 1,750
2022 2021
£ £
7,654,348 5,755,538
664,732 514,201
2,681,360 1,771,808
11,000,440 8,041,548
29,249 17,846

11,029,689

8,059,494
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12.

Staff (contlnued)
a. Staff costs (continued)

Staff restructuring costs comprise;

2022 2021

£ _ £

Severance payments - 7,602
- 7,502

b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2022 2021
No. No.
Teachers 149 103
Administrative and support 232 183
Management 1" 16
382 286

The average headcount expressed as full-lime equivalents was:
2022 2021
No. No.
Teachers 123 101
Administrative and support 132 93
Management 1" 10

266 204

c¢. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£80.000 was:
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12,

Staff (continued)

¢, Higher pald staff {continuad)

In the band £60,001 - £70,000
In the band £70,001 - £80.000
In the band £100,001 - £110,000

d. Key management personnel

2022
No.

2021
No.

The key management personnegl of the academy trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for

their services to the academy trust was £384,054 (2027 £865,847).
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13.  Central services
The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

Financial Services

Audit and other compliance
Leadership and education support
ICT support

Payroll services

ITT management and support
Accountancy and budgeting software
Safeguarding software

Other services as arising

" F ¥ 5 ¥ & B @

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:

Each academy within the trust has been charged a fee for central services based on their current Ofsted
rating as follows:

Cuistanding - 4% of GAG

Good - 6% of GAG

Requires Improvement - 7.5% of GAG
Special Measures - 9% of GAG

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2022 2021

£ £

The Sir Donald Bailey Academy 134,721 123,346

The Parkgate Academy 103,458 96,816

The Forest View Academy 65,849 60, 131

The Marton Academy 27,392 268,334

The West Park Academy 64,775 102,176

The Python Hill Academy 77,985 110,368
The 5t Augustine's Academy 107,241 -

Total 581,421 519,171
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14.

15.

16,

Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has recsived other benefits from an employment
with the academy trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment, The valua of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2022 2021

£ £

Mr L Hessey, Principal Remuneration 105,000 - 105,000 -
110,000 116,000

Pension contributions paid 25,000 - 25,000 -

30,000 30,000

During the year ended 31 August 2022, no Trustee expenses have been Incurred (2021 - £NIL),

Trustees' and Officers’ insurance

The academy trust has opled into the Department of Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers frem claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occutring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element fram the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

Tangible fixed assets

Leng-term Furniture
leasehold and Computer Motor
property equipment equipment vehicles Total
£ £ £ £

Cost or valuation
Al 1 Sepiember 2021 27,757,411 142,216 316,870 14,495 28,231,092
Additions 892,877 371786 158,342 - 1,188,395
Transfer on conversion from
Local Authority 6,796,000 - - - 6,796,000
Disposals - - {8,551) - {8,551)
At 31 August 2022 35,546,288 179,392 466,761 14,485 36,206,936
Depreciation
At 1 September 2021 2,073,846 87,618 194,295 302 2.356,061
Charge for the year 587,766 26,126 86,128 3,623 703,643
On disposals - - {8,551) - {8,551)
At 31 August 2022 2,661,612 113,744 271,872 3,925 3,051,153
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Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Long-term Furniture
leasehold and Computer Motor
property aguipment equipment vehicles Total
£ £ £ £ £
Net book value
At 31 August 2022 32,884,676 €5,648 194,889 10,570 33,155,783
At 31 August 2021 25,683,565 54,598 122,675 14,193 25,873,031

Included in leasehald property is leasehold land at valuation of £5,335,000 (2021: £4,125,000), which is
not depreciated.

All schools occupied by the Trust are under 125 lease agreements with the respective local county
coungl.

The academy trust's ransactions relating to Jand and buildings included a transfer in of buildings for
£8,796,000 that relates to St Augusting's Academy that was transferred in during the period from the local
authority.

Debtors
2022 2021
£ £
Due within one year
Trade debtors 1,040 1,218
Other debtors 1,500 2,681
Prepayments and accrved income 576,705 288,840
VAT recoverable 147,970 49,882

727,215 342 521

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2022 20271

£ £

Other loans 5,698 5,653
Trade creditors 537,930 122,783
Other taxation and social security 162,613 125,183
Other creditors 184,868 154,775
Accruals and deferred income 356,540 166,219
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18.

19.

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year (continued)

2022 2021

1,247,648 575,613

Other loans includes lpans payable within one year of £5,698, which consists of:

£4,718 relates to a Salix loan agreement, incepted as part of a heating system project. This loan is
repayable through six-monthly instalments over the remaining 3 year period, with an interest raie of 0%.

£980 relates to a loan for solar panels. This is repayable through six-moenthly instalments over the
remaining 2 year period, with an interest rate of 4.5%.

2022 2021

£ £

Deferred income at 1 September 2021 117,528 152,704
Resources deferred during the year 197,645 117,628
Amounts released from previous periods {117,528} (182,704}

197,645 117,528

Deferred income for 2024/22 includes £94,829 in respect of Universal Infant Free School Meals for
2022423, £43.930 SEN Income for 2022/23, £21,545 for rates relief, £15,130 for trip income, £440 LCC
bus supervision income and £21,770 AFN income all received in advance.

Craditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2022 2021
£ £

Other loans 9,048 14,746

Other loans includes loans payable after more than one year of £8,048, which consists of:

£7.077 relates to a Salix loan agreement, incepted as part of a heating system project. This loan is
repayable through six-monthly instalments over the remaining 3 year period, with an interest rate of 0%.

£1,971 relates to a loan for solar panels. This is repayable through six-monthly instalments over the
remaining 2 year period, with an interest rate of 4.5%.
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20,

Statement of funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains! 31 August
2021 [ncome Expenditure infout {Losses) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 248,689 102,213 (86,141} - - 264,761
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant {(GAG) 2,011,406 9,996,464 (8,752,830} (797,292) - 2,457,748
Other DfE/ESFA
grants 34,571 519,161 (524,754) - - 32,978
Government
grants 2,525 164,863 (164,863) - - 2,525
Other income 53,241 503,147 {473,427) - - 82,961
COVID-19 free
school meal
vouchers 4,589 - {1.737) - - 2,852
COoVID-19 other
funding - 214,412 (214,412) - - -
Pupil Premium - 1,134,632 (1,134,632) - - -
Early years - 700,232 (700,232) - - -
SEN 7,157 272,204 {272,204) - - 7,157
Pension reserve  (7,561,000) (2,408,000] (1,169,000) - 9,008,000 (2,130,000}
{5447 511) 11,087,115 (13,404,091) (797,292) 9,008,000 456,221
Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
DIE/ESFA
Capital Grant 176,325 150,271 {65,944) - - 260,652
Capital
expenditure from
GAG 1,208,999 - {77,703) 797,292 - 1,928,588
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20,

Statement of funds (continued)

Assets from
predecessor
school

Condition
Improvement
Fund

Capital
expenditure from
donations

Total Restricted
funds

Total funds

20,660,052

18,479,705

(14,193,877}

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2022

£ £ £ £ £ £
22,269,412 6,796,000 {511,631) - - 28,553,782
2,204,137 332,865 (47,982) - - 2,489,020

- 1,241 (385) - - B56
25,858,874 7,280,377 {703,645) 797,292 - 33,232,898
20,411,363 18,377,492 (14,107,736) - 9,008,000 33,689,119

- 9,008,000 33,953,880
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20.

Statement of funds {continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Academy.

Other DFE / ESFA Grants comprise of various grants awarded for specific projects, in particular to boost
standards of attainment. Grants include Pupil Premium funding which is intended to suppont education
from pupils from a disadvantaged background.

Local Government Grants includes funding provided for pupils with Statements of Special Educational
Needs and is used by the academy to assist with the pupil's education.

Devolved capital funding is that provided to academies to use as it sees fit in areas such as
improvements to buildings or facilities, or the repair or refurbishment of such.

Other capital grants are provided to the academy based on specific bids for individual projects.

Other income comprises various other receipts including scheoal meals. The income is classed as
restricted or unrestricted based on the nature of the income,

The pension reserve arises from the actuarial measurement of the Academy's share of the Local
Government Pension Scheme deficit, This deficit is recorded as a provision. The actuarial cost of
employing siaff during the year is initially reflected in the normal running costs of the school in the
restricted pension fund. The amount included in resources expended represents the pension cost for the
year charged to income and expenditure that arises from actuarial calculations of service cost rather than
employer contributions paid, and amounts to £1,168,000. Actuarial gains and losses that arise from
changes in assumptions by the actuary or wider influences are shown in the restricted pension fund, the
movement this year being a net £9,008,000 actuarial decrease in the net pension fund deficit.

Restricted fixed asset funds represent monies received in raspect of and spent on fixed assets. This
includes assets inherited on conversion. The total of resources expended within this fund include the
depreciation charge for the year. The transfers figure is the amount of other funds used to acquire fixed
assets.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG it could cary forward at 31 August 2022,
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20.

Statement of funds {continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
1 Septernber Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2020 income  Expenditure infout {Losses} 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted
funds
General Funds 234,297 40,865 {26,473) - - 248,689
Restricted
genaral funds
General Annual
Grant {GAG}) 1,208,205 7.472.042  (6.398,4835) {270,356} - 2,011,406
Other DIE/ESFA
grants 30,058 1,478,623 (1,475,110} - - 34,571
Government
grants 9,682 785,227 {785,227} - - 9,682
Cther income 47,863 299,163 (264,307} 522 - 53,241
Covid Catch-up
Premium - 126,080 {126,080) - - -
COVID-19 free
school meal
vouchers - 158,053 {183,464) - - 4,589
COVID-19 other
funding - 2,136 {2,136) - - -
Pensicn reserve  (6,722,000) - (617,000) - (822,600} (7,561,000
(4,828,192) 10,322,324 (3,849,804} {269,834) {822,000) (5447,511)
Restricted fixed
asset funds
DfE/ESFA
Capital Grant 181,638 42,998 {48, 308) - - 176,325
Capital
expenditure fram
GAG 1,005,052 - (59,234) 263,181 - 1,206,988
Assals from
predecessor
school 22,667,375 - {3959,911) 1,849 - 22,268,413
Condition
Improvement
Fund 2,247 415 - {47,982) 4,704 - 2,204,137
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20. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance al Balance al
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
26,101,480 42,996 {555,436) 269,834 - 25,858,874
Total Restricted
funds 21,273,288 10,365,320 (10,405,245) - (822,000) 20,411,363

Total funds 21,507,585 10,406,185 (10,431,718) - (822,000) 20,660,052

Total funds analysls by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as follows:

2022 2021
£ £
The Sir Donald Bailey Academy 249,033 525,778
The Forest View Academy 476,479 360,048
The Parkgale Academy 467,385 434,244
The Faorge Trust 517,206 452,050
The Maron Academy 305,660 213,460
The West Park Academy 265,108 240,442
The Python Hill Academy 239,088 136,156
The 3t Augustine's Academy 331,023 -
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 2,850,982 2,362,178
Restricted fixed asset fund 33,232,898 25,858,874
Pension reserve (2,130,000) (/.561,000)
Total 33,953,880 20,660,052
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20. Statement of funds (continued)
Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational excluding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2022 2021
£ £ £ £ £ £
The Sir Conald
Bailey Academy 2,139,266 506,004 153,028 452 272 3,250,570 2,930,306
The Forest View
Academy 851,456 216,977 56,096 185,059 1,279,588 1,219,404
The Parkgate
Academy 1,340,186 340,702 103,641 327,815 2,112,344 1,839,789
The Forge Trust 271,781 147 820 1,303 166,302 587,206 517,045
The Marton
Academy 364,188 36,203 14,017 77,895 492,301 474,882
The West Park
Academy 1,039,553 182,348 52,344 211,115 1,485,360 1,383,871
The Python Hill
Academy 1,125,389 219,053 70,059 230,248 1,644,747 1,511,585
The St
Augustine's
Acadeny 1,698,763 549,001 104,773 284,579 2,638,116 -

Academy trust $.831,580 2,198,108 565,261 1,805,283 13,490,232 9,876,282
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21,

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysls of net assets betwaan funds - current year

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Cregitors due within one year
Creditars due in more than one year
Provisions for liabilities and charges

Total

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year
Creditors due in mora than one year
Provisions for liabilities and charges

Total

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2022
£ £ £ £
- - 33,155,783 33,155,783
264,761 3,828,172 91,861 4,184,794
- (1,241,951) (5,698) (1,247,649)
- - (9,048} (9,048)
- (2,130,000) - (2,130,000)
264,761 456,221 33,232,898 33,953,880
Restricted
Unrestricted Resfricted  fixed assef Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021
£ £ £ £
- - 25,875,031 25875037
256,513 2,674,625 5,242 2,936,380
{7,824} {561,136) (6,653) (575,613}
- - {14,748) {14,746}
- {7,.561,000) - (7,561,000}
248,688  (5.447.,511) 25,858,874

20,660,052
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22,

23.

24,

Reconciliation of net income/{expenditure} to net cash flow frem operating activities

2022 2021
£ £
Net income/{expenditure} for the year {as per Statement of financial .
activities) 4,285,628 {25,533
Adjustmants for:
Depreciation 703,645 555,435
Capital grants frorm DfE and ather capital income (484,377 (42,896)
Inferest receivable {322) {226)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 983,000 521,000
Defined benefit pensicn scheme finance cost 186,000 96,000
Increase in debtors (384,698) {48,869)
Increasef{decrease) in creditors 672,991 {(111,102)
Profit an asset disposal - {1,478}
Transfer on conversion from local authority inte academy trust 2,408,000 -
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,370,067 942 230
Cash flows from financing activities
2022 2021
£ £
Repayments of borrowing (6,652) (6,668)
Net cash used in financing activities (6,652) {6,668)
Cash flows from investing activities
2022 2021
£ £
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 322 226
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {1,188,394) {328,436)
Praceeds from the sale of tangible fixed assets - 2000
Capital grants from DfE Group 484,377 42,996
Land and buildings transferred on conversion {6,796,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities (7,499,695) {263,214)
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25,

26,

27,

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021

£ £

Cash at bank 3,457,579 2,653,855

Total cash and cash equivalents 3,457,579 2,543,858
Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1

September At 31

2021 Cash flows August 2022

£ £ £

Cash at bank and in hand 2,593,859 863,720 3,457,579

Debt due within 1 year (6,653) 855 (5,698}

Debt due after 1 year {14,746) 5,698 (9,0438)

2,572,460 870,373 3,442,833

Contingent liabilities

During the period of the Funding Agreements, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any
asset for which a Government capital grant was received, the Academy is required either to re-invest the
proceeds or 1o repay to the Secrelary of State for Education the same propertion of the proceeds of the
sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the Funding Agreements, whether as a resuilt of the Secretary of State or the
Academy serving notice, the Academy shall repay to the Secretary of Stale sums determined by reference
ta

{a} the value at that time of the Academy’s site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of the
Academy; and

(b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assels was met by payments by the
Secretary of State under the Funding Agreements.
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28,

29,

Capltal commitments

2022 2021
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements

Acquisition of tangible fixed assels 197,228 104,850

Pension commitments

The academy trusi's employeses belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TP3) for academic and related staff, and the Local Gavernment Pension Scheme
{(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Nottinghamshirs County Council (The Forge Trust,
Forest View Academy, Parkgate Academy, Sir Donald Bailey Acadermy, West Park Academy, Python Hill
Acadamy and St Augustine's Academy) and Lincolnshire County Council {Marton Academy). Both are
multi-empioyer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019,

Contributions amounting to £187,983 were payable 1o the schemes at 31 August 2022 (2027 - £139,187}
angd are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pensilon Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and smployer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited ta the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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29,

Pension commitments {continued)
Valuation of the Teachers’' Pensien Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions {Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the leve! of fuiure
contributions, Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumplions about the value of fulure costs,
design of benefits and many other factors, The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuaiion report was published by the Department for Education on § March 2018.
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

. emplayer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)
. total scheme liabilities {pensions cumently in payment and the estimated cost of future bensfits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future centributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to defermine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the raie of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

Tha next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024,
The employer's pension cests paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,121,757 (2027 - £874,281).

A copy of the valuation report and supporiing documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
{hitps:fiwww teacherspensions.co.ukinews/emplayers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The acadamy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Penslon Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £700,000 (2027 -
£492,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £548,000 {2021 - £382,000} and employses'
contributions totalled £ 152,000 (2021 - £110,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 20.8
per cent for employers and varicus per cent for employees for employees within the MNottinghamshire
County Council Pension Fund and 21.4 per cent for employers and varicus per cent for employees within
the Lincoinshire County Council Pension Fund.,

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the academy trust, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained scheol and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
academy trust at the bajance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
avent of academy closure, outstanding Local Gavernment Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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29.

Penslon commitments (continuad)

The actuarial assumptions for The Forge Trust, Forest View Academy, Parkgate Academy, Sir Donald
Bailey Academy, West Park Academy, Python Hill Academy and St Augustine's Academy, managed by
Nottinghamshire County Council, are as follows:

Principal actuarial assumptions

2022 2021

Yo %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.90 3.85
Rate of increase for pensicns in payment/inflation 290 285

Discount rate 4.25 1.7

The current mortality assumptions inciude sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2022 2021
Years Years
Reliring today
Males 217 21.6
Famales 244 24.3
Retiring in 20 years
Males 23.0 22.9

Females 25.8 25.7

The actuarial assumplions for the Marton Academy, managed by Lincelnshire County Council, are as
follows:

2022 2021

% %

Rate of increase in salarias 3.25 3.2
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentfinflation 2.95 2.9
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4,25 1.65

The current moriality assumgptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in morality rates.
The assumed life expeciations on retirement age 65 are.
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29.

Pension commitments {contlnued)

Retiring today
Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate -0.1%
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
CPlrate +0.1%

2022 2021
Years Years
21.2 21.2
23.7 23.6
221 22.0
25.1 25.1
2022 2021
£000 £000
253 344
264 442
229 308
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29.

Pension commitments {continued)

Share of scheme assets

The academy trust's share of the assets in the schemea was:

Equities

Gilts

Corporate bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets
Other

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £(45,000) (2027 - £694,000}.

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Net interest cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities

At 31 At 31 August

Changes in the present value of the dafined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 1 September

Transferred in on conversion from local authority jcining the academy trust

Current service cost
Interest cost

Emgployee contributions
Actuarial {gains)losses
Benefits paid

At 31 August

August 2022 2021
£ £
4,523,000 3,667,000
211,000 217,000
503,000 338,000
1,099,000 576,000
424 000 229,000
866,000 536,000
7,626,000 5,621,000
2022 2021

£ £
{1,556,000) (903,000}
(160,000) (107,000)
{1,716,000} (7,010,000)
2022 2021

£ £
13,182,000 10,657,000

3,870,000 -

1,556,000 503,000
282,000 172,000
152,000 110,000
(9,477,000} 71,438,000
(109,000} (132,000}

9,756,000

13,182,000
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29,

30.

3.

Pension commitments {continued)

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2022 2021

£ £

At 1 September 5,621,000 4,569,000
Transferred in on conversicn from local authority joining the academy trust 1,462,000 -

Interest income 122,000 76,000

Actuarial (losses)gains {169,000} 616,000

Employer confributions 548,000 382,000

Employee contributions 152,000 110,000

Bengfits paid {109,000) {132,000)

At 31 August 7,627,000

Operating lease commitmants

5,621,000

At 31 August 2022 the academy trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2022 2021

£ £

Not later than 1 year 38,507 13,156
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 84,126 16,606
122,633 29,852

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while hefshe is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before hefshe ceases to be a member.
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32.

33

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Board of Trusiees being drawn from
local public and private seclor organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made
on or after 1 April 2012 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's
financial regulations and nommal procurement progedures relating to connected and related party
transactions.

Mrs J Hessey, wife of Mr L Hessey, the executive head of the Trust, is employed by the academy trust as
an Admin assistant. Mrs J Hessey's appointment was made in open competition and Mr L Hessey was
not involved in the decision-making process regarding her appointment. Mrs J Hessey is paid within the
normal pay scale for her role and receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

Mrs D Hall, daughter of Mr A Stidand, the principal of The Python Hill Academy, is employad by the
school as a teacher. Mr A Stirland was not involved with the appointment or setting of her pay.

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain trustees'
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in the notes.

Transfer of conversion from local authority into the academy trust

On 1 September 2021 the St Augustine's Academy converted to academy status under the Academies
Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to The Forge Trust from the
Nottinghamshire County Council for £nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabililies
transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate
headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial
Activities as transfer on conversion from local authority into the academy trust.

The following table sets cut the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the SOFA,

The 5t Augustine's Academy

Value

reported by

transferring Transfer in
trust recognised

£ £
Tangible fixed assets
Long-term leasehcld property 6,798,000 6,796,000
Current assets
Cash at bank and in hand 273,185 273,185
Liabilities
Pensions
Pensions - pension scheme assets 1,462,000 1,462,000

Page 71



THE FORGE TRUST
(A company limitad by guarantee}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2022

33. Transfer of conversion from local authority Into the academy trust {continued}

Value
raported by
transferring Transferin
trust recognised
£ £
Pensions - pension scheme liabilities {3,870,000) (3,870,000}
Net assets

4,661,185

4,661,185
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